buildings were professionally designed, but major edifices, comprising most of the downtown, were the proud accomplishment of a few prolific architects. Much of our city's character is theirs.

In the forefront of the first wave of professional architects here, beginning about the middle of the nineteenth century, were White, Russell and Silsbee. For over half a century they contributed most of the key monuments, institutional and religious, as well as many of the commercial and residential background buildings. Although Silsbee was here only eight years, Russell's last important work was done sixty-one years after White's first major commission. Their most productive periods lagged by sixteen years; for seven of those, Silsbee was practicing here, so that the generation half century of building which they represent centers about 1880. At this time two other local architects, Asa Merrick and Charles Colton, were in practice. An early golden Age of Syracuse architecture was flowering just a century ago, during the first decade of this University and its School of Architecture, with which all three of these architects were associated.

This is a fitting time to recall these architects and their works, as White's Hall of Languages now joins, on this campus, Russell's Crouse College, and Silsbee's Syracuse Savings Bank downtown as regional landmarks which have been maintained, restored and adapted to living use for another century.

This exhibition and checklist supplement a symposium of the Harley McKee Chapter of the Society of Architectural Historians, convened at Syracuse University on the occasion of the dedication of the Harley McKee Reading Room at the School of Architecture, Syracuse University. Professor McKee taught at the School for many years and was a founding member of the Society of Architectural Historians. He studied—one may properly say, "stayed from obscurity"—these Syracuse architects. His initial scholarship, now in the archives of Syracuse University, has assisted another generation of students: papers on White, Russell and Silsbee, respectively, have been prepared for this symposium by Elmer Horning, Emma Hardin and Donald Pulfer. Professor Mary Ann Smith of the School of Architecture, Syracuse University, as President of the Harley McKee Chapter, has directed arrangements, with assistance from Dr. David Rowe, Director, Landmarks Association of Central New York. Much of the material has come from the Onondaga Historical Association. The exhibition has been assisted by a grant from the New York State Council on the Humanities. The checklist has been partially funded by Syracuse Savings Bank. The exhibit has been installed with much help from the School of Architecture, Bird Library and Facilities Planning at Syracuse University.

The following checklist is based on a list of the work of the architects prepared by the late Harley McKee, Professor Architecture, Syracuse University, in 1964. Several additions have been made. Demolished buildings are indicated by (d) while those whose current state is uncertain are indicated by (?). The coordinators of the exhibit would appreciate the aid of readers of the checklist in determining the fate of those buildings in question. Unless noted, the buildings are located in Syracuse.
1861: Jefferson County Court House
Watertown, N. Y. (d.)

Onondaga Orphan Asylum School House
Madison St. (7)

1862: Dwelling and School for Sisters of Charity
St. John's Church, N. Salina St. (7)

Geneseo Public School
W. Geneseo St. (7)

District No. 2 Public School
Town of Geddes (d.)

1863: Christ Church
Jordan, N. Y.

Bastable Block and Shakespeare Hall
Walter, Warren and Geneseo Sts. (d.)

First Presbyterian Church
Onego and Tulip Sts., Liverpool, N. Y.

1864: Presbyterian Church
Baldwinsville, N. Y.

School for Sisters of St. Joseph
N. Salina St. (d.)

1865: Soldiers' Monument
Penn Yan, N. Y.

R. C. Church of the Assumption
812 N. Salina St.

First Presbyterian Church
Onego and Elizabeth Sts., Baldwinsville, N. Y.

1866: W. G. Rodgers Block
Jordan, N. Y. (altered)

Brommer Block of Dwellings
Townsend and Jefferson Sts. (d.)

Orphan Asylum and School of St. Vincent de Paul
John A. Green Mausoleum, Oakwood Cemetery
Comstock Ave.

Burr Burton Mausoleum, Oakwood Cemetery
Comstock Ave.

Hall's Bakery
James St. (d.)

1867: R. C. Church of St. John the Baptist
Park and Court Sts.

Century Methodist Episcopal Church
812 West and Shonnard Sts. (Second Olivet Baptist)

Fire-Engine House, Co. 3
Wyoming St. (d.)

---

1868: Central Baptist Church
Montgomery and Jefferson Sts. (d.)

Division St. & Court Alley Fire-Engine House
Vanderbilt House Hotel
Warren and Washington Sts. (d.)

Remington Residence
Ilium, N. Y. (d.)

1869: Methodist Church
Baldwinsville, N. Y.

The Home for Friendless
212 N. Townsend and Hawley Sts.

Shops for D. L. & W. Railroad Co. (d.)

Lumber Building
Warren, Washington and Geneseo Sts. (additions)

1870: City Hall
Onego, N. Y.

Grace Episcopal Church
Mexico, N. Y.

Washburn Building
Brewerton, N. Y. (altered)

Horatio N. White Residence
James St. (d.)

1871: 48th Regimental Armory
Onego, N. Y.

Methodist Church
Clyde, N. Y.

First Baptist Church
Syracuse and Tappen Sts., Baldwinsville, N. Y.

Auburn Savings Bank
Auburn, N. Y.

Hall of Languages
Syracuse University

Franklin School
Butternut St. (7)

Public School
Madison St. (7)

1872: F. T. Carrington Residence
Onego, N. Y. (d.)

Park Church
Elelira, N. Y. (7)

1875: Fourth Presbyterian Church
Onondaga, Harrison and Salina Sts. (d.)

Independent Church
Canastota, N. Y. (d.)
Silsbee

JOSEPH LYMAN SILSBEE (1848-1915)

1875: Syracuse Savings Bank Building
102 N. Salina St. at Erie Blvd., Clinton Square

1876: White Memorial Building
Washington and S. Salina Sts.

1877: Theodore Voorhees Residence
Ballston Spa, N. Y.
Dr. John J. French Residence
Chestnut St. (d.)
Prof. Durston Residence
University Ave. (d.)
Rev. Charles W. Bennett Residence
Irving Ave. (d.)

1878: Dwight E. Bruce Residence
James St. (d.)
Amos Block
W. Water St.
Public Conveniece
Salina St. (d.)
Dutch Reformed Church
James St. (d.)
Dining Room Addition, Dr. Thomas Emory Residence
Fayette and McBride Sts. (d.)
Col. E. S. Jenney Residence
Lodi and Wayne Sts. (d.)
Furniture for Henry Ward Beecher
Peekskill, N. Y.
Hotel Westworth
Round Lake, N. Y.

1879: Mortuary Chapel and Receiving Vault
Oakwood Cemetery, Costock Ave.

1880: Public School
James St., Utica, N. Y. (d.)
Trinity Church
Antrim, N. Y. (d.)

1882: Falconwood Club House
Buffalo, N. Y.

1883: A. F. Lewis Residence (d.)
(White)

1861: Jefferson County Court House
Watertown, N. Y. (d.)
Onondaga Orphan Asylum School House
Madison St. (7)

1862: Dwelling and School for Sisters of Charity
St. John's Church, N. Salina St. (7)
Genesee Public School
W. Genesee St. (d.)
District No. 2 Public School
Troy St. (r.)

1863: Christ Church
Jordan, N. Y.
Rastall Block and Shakespeare Hall
Water, Warren and Genesee Sts. (d.)
First Presbyterian Church
Oswego and Tupper Sts., Liverpool, N. Y.

1864: Presbyterian Church
Baldwinsville, N. Y.
School for Sisters of St. Joseph
N. Salina St. (d.)

1865: Soldiers' Monument
Penn Yan, N. Y.
R. C. Church of the Assumption
812 N. Salina St.
First Presbyterian Church
Oswego and Elizabeth Sts., Baldwinsville, N. Y.

1866: W. C. Rodgers Block
Jordan, N. Y. (altered)
Bromner Block of dwellings
Townsend and Jefferson Sts. (d.)
Orphan Asylum and School of St. Vincent de Paul
John A. Green Mausoleum, Oakwood Cemetery
Comstock Ave.
Burr Burton Mausoleum, Oakwood Cemetery
Comstock Ave.
Hall's Bakery
James St. (d.)

1867: R. C. Church of St. John the Baptist
Park and Court Sts.
Centenary Methodist Episcopal Church
812 West and Shonnard Sts. (Second Olivet Baptist)
Fire-Engine House, Co. 3
Wyoming St. (d.)

(Russell)

Methodist Church
Cazenovia, N. Y.
St. Peter's Baptist Church
Rome, N. Y.

1874: Parsonage, St. John the Evangelist Church
214 N. State St.

1876: D. McCarthy and Sons Wholesale Store
Clinton and Washington Sts. (d.)
Jacob Crouse Hotel and Congress Hall
Washington and Franklin Sts. (d.)

1877: Union Free School and Academy
Canastota, N. Y. (7)
Howard Soule Residence
James St. (d.)

1878: Hendricks Building
Fayette St. and Bank Alley
Hamilton White's Fire-Engine House
E. Genesee St. (d.)

1879: Baptist Church
Camillus, N. Y.
Oswego County Courthouse
Cooperstown, N. Y.

1880: Onondaga County Clerk's Office Building
Clinton and Willow Sts. (d.)

1883: Kearney's Brewery
N. Salina and Wolf Sts. (d.)
Onondaga County Orphan Asylum
E. Genesee St. (d.)

1884: Greyhound Building
James St. (d.)
Court of Appeals
Clinton St. (d.)

1885: Third National Bank Building
Salina and James Sts., Clinton Square

1887: Crouse College Building
Syracuse University
Von Ranke Library Building (Administration Bldg.)
Syracuse University

1897: Jacob Amos Warehouse
N. Water St.
James Pass Apartments
West Genesee St. (7)

1898: Onondaga Pottery Co. Building (d.)

1899: St. Lucy's Church Convent
Faison St.
First M. E. Church
E. Onondaga and State Sts. (d.)
Ninth Baptist Church
Logehl Ave. (name changed)
Oak Knitting Co., Mill Building
Fulton and Division Sts. (7)
Zett Residence
Dunforth St.
Frank Residence
Dunforth St.

1900: Hospital Building, Onondaga County Home
Onondaga Hill (d.)
W. L. Merriman Flats
W. Onondaga St. (d.)

1901: St. Anthony of Padua Church
1515 Midland Ave.
Friedens German Church
Lodi and Ash Sts.
The Snowdon Apartments
James St. and Burnet
W. A. Saxer Warehouse
W. Water St. (d)
Central High School
Warren and Adams Sts.

1903: John Ritchie Stores
W. Genesee St. (7)

1904: Dilleye Memorial Building
S. Salina St. (7)
Hotaling-Warnier Co., Factory
N. Clinton St. (d.)

1905: Universalist Church
Warren and Adams Sts. (d.)
W. S. Peck Warehouse
Franklin St. (7)
George Fisher Warehouse
James St. (7)
Pass and Seymour Office Building
Solvey (7)
Michael O'Brien Apartments
Cedar St. (d.)
1906: Charles Thomas Apartments
S. State St. (d.)
Daniel O'Brien Tenements
Warren St. (d.)
McMahons Apartments
Seymour St. (?)
Edward Joy Warehouse
East Washington St. (?)

1907: (fourth) Onondaga County Courthouse
High School
Pond and Mary Sts. (d.)
Herald Building Printing House
S. Warren St. (?)
O'Hern and McKeveitt Building
S. Warren St. (?)

1908: Women's Building
Onondaga County Home (d.)
House of Providence Asylum Building
W. Onondaga St. (d.)
F. H. Schneider Factory
Belden Ave. (?)
C. M. Warner Store and Office
S. Salina St. (?)

1909: Odd Fellows Temple
Warren St. (d.)
St. Joseph's Hospital Nurses' Building (?)
M. L. Oberdorfer Mill
E. Water St. (d.)

1910: First English Lutheran Church
James St.
Quinlan and McCarthy Building
S. Warren St. (d.)

1912: Infirmary, Onondaga County Orphans' Home
E. Genesee St. (d.)
William Collins Theatre Building
Lowell Ave. (d.)

1913: Hudson Brothers Building
Warren St. (d.)
Alexander Brown Warehouse
S. Clinton St. (?)
C. W. Snow Warehouse
W. Willow St. (d.)

1914: Men's Dormitory, Onondaga County Home (d.)